
July 11, 2023 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Agenda 

 

Bedford County Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Board Meeting 

Date: Tuesday, July 11, 2023  

Time: 7:00 PM 

Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom 

Agenda 

Call to Order:  Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham 

Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance:  Commissioner Jason Boyette 

Open Meeting:  Sheriff Austin Swing 

Roll Call:  County Clerk Donna Thomas 

Minutes Approval: 

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from June 13, 2023 - Placed on the agenda without 

a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee. 

2. Approval of Special Called Commission Meeting Minutes from June 29, 2023 - Placed on 

agenda without a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee. 

Elections & Confirmations: 

3. Elect Notaries for August 2023 - Placed on agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee. 

Presentations:  None. 

Resolutions: 

4. Resolution No. 24-8 Bedford County Corridor Study Transportation Planning Grant-Placed on 

agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee (4-0). 

Additional Items by Standing Committees: 

Rules and Legislative Committee: 

5. Temporary Public Comment Guidelines - Pursuant to State of Tennessee Public Chapters 213 

and 300 effective July 1, 2023, a governing body shall, for each public meeting, reserve a 

period for public comment on matters that are germane to the items on the agenda for the 

meeting. 

6. Consideration of Petition from Bedford Market, Sunchaser's Market, and Halls Mill Market to 

Reduce the 2,000 Foot Distance Rule to Zero Footage Distance from a Church, School, or 

Public Gathering Place to Sell Beer. 

Law Enforcement Committee:  None. 

Courthouse and Property Committee:  None. 

Financial Management Committee: 

7. Spectrum Contract 

8. Surplus Property - BOE 

Other Business: 

9. Q3 Reports 

Clerk & Master 

Circuit Court Clerk/Driving School Director-Report Enclosed. 

County Clerk 

Director of Schools 

Election Registrar 

Hwy Superintendent - Report Enclosed. 

Property Assessor 

Registrar of Deeds 

Trustee 

Shelbyville-Bedford Partnership 

Announcements 

Adjourn 

                         /s/ Chad D. Graham        

Chad D. Graham, Bedford County Mayor 

 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from June 13, 2023 - Placed on the agenda without a 

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee.

2

Item 1.



Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Tuesday, June 13,2023
Time: 7:00 PM
Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes
Public Hearing

PUBLIC NOTICE
The Bedford CountyBoard ofCommissioners

OnMarch 28.2023. the Bedford County Regional Planning Commission voted unanjmously
to favorably recommend two (2) amendments of the Zoning Resolution of Bedford County.
Specifically.Article III. Section 3.340 titled private Airstrips ANDArticle Ill. Section 3.360
titled SilWs.Billboards. and other Advertisinl: Structures.
A public hearing will occur immediately before the Bedford County Commission meeting
which will begin at 7:00 p.m. on June 13.2023. The public hearingand commission meetings
will be held at the historic Bedford County Courthouse on the Shelbyville Public Square in
the 2nd floor County Commission Chambers.

Accommodations
Persons with a disability who wish to request a special accommodation to participate in the
Public Meeting should notify Suzanne Alexander at least one (1) business day prior to the

Meeting at (931) 684-794401' email your request to
suzanne.alexander@bedfordcountytn.gov to discuss accommodations. Every reasonable

effort will be made to meet your need.

Chairman Graham opened the hearing and invited anyone to speak for or against. No one came forward
and Graham closed the hearing.

Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas

PRESENT
Bill Anderson
John Boutwell
Janice Brothers
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Drew Hooker
Scott Johnson
Eric Maddox
Diane Neeley
Sylvia Pinson
Julie Sanders
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Mark Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick
Linda Yockey

Minutes Approval:
1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes fromMay 9,2023 - Placed on the agenda without a

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee.

Motion to approve byMark Thomas. Seconded by Epperson. Passed by voice vote.

ABSENT
Jason Boyette

Elections & Confirmations:
2. Elect Notaries for July 2023 - Placed on the agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee.

Motion to approve by Vick. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

June 13,2023 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
3

Item 1.



-- ~

BEDFORD COUNTY CLERK
DONNA THOMAS COUNTY CLERK

100 PUBLIC SQ STE 104
SHELBYVILLE TN 37160

Telephone 931-684-1921
Fax 931-685-9590

Notaries to be elected June 13,2023

NOLAN BARNES
TRACEYL BOYCE
NANR BUCHANAN-TOMERLIN
HANNAH DEASON
MARGARETB EVERETT
KIMBERLY HAND

JOEM LAMBERTJR
AMANDA MCCALL
MARIAS SEBASTIAN
TINA RENESTEM
KAY TEMPLETON
JANE TOWNES

3. Shelbyville-Bedford County Public Library Appointment to replace Cherie Beatty.

Library Director Lis Ann Greiner recommended Mary Pitner who will be moving from the city
seat to the newly vacated county seat. Motion to approve by Epperson. Seconded by
Yockey. Passed by voice vote.

4. Bedford County Regional Planning Commission Re-Appointments

Graham recommended re-appointing Jeff Sweeney and Reid Farmer. Motion to approve by
Mark Thomas. Seconded by Boutwell. Passed by voice vote.

S. Bedford County Board of Education - 4th District Appointment to Replace Courtney Bogle
- Nominations from the floor. Placed on the agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee.

Graham opened the floor for nominations. Epperson nominated Lana Craig. There were no
other nominations. Mark Thomas made a motion that nominations cease. Seconded by
Anderson. Passed by voice vote.

Presentations: None.

Resolutions:

6. Resolution No. 23-21 - Amendment to Zoning Resolution of Bedford County, Article III,
Section 3.340, Private Airstrips- Placed on the agenda by the Rules & Legislative Committee
(unanimous).

Motion to approve by Anderson. Seconded by Hooker. Passed by voice vote.

BEDFORD COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

Tennessee by adding the underlined (underlined)words below. deleting the
words struck through (strlltl, tRFallgR).and by following Italiclzed instructions
(do this or that) in parenthesis as follows:

Resolution No. 23-21
Article III, Section 3.340. Private Airstrips

AResolution to amend Article Ill, of the Zoning Resolution of
Bedford County:

WHEREAS, the Bedford County Commission, as recommended by the Bedford
County Regional Planning Commission, deemed it necessary in the promotion
of public health, safety, morals. convenience, order, prosperity, and the general
welfare of the County to enact the certified Zoning Resolution of Bedford
County on January 13. 1998, and b) (5.)

flannin&
A detailed site plan, in conformance to the specifications
listed in Article II, Section 2.080, prepared by a registered
Tennessee architect. &F licensed Tennessee engineering firm.
or licensedTennessee Surveyor,is a prerequisite to application
submission. Federal Aviation Regulation (FAR) part 157
states that anyone proposing to build a personal or private
use airport (used solely for VFR (Visual Flight Rules)
conditions, located more than twenty (20) nautical miles
from an airport for which an instrument approach procedure
(IFR) is authorized and located more than five (5) nautical
miles from any airport open to the public. The applicant must
submit FAA form 74BO·l at least thirty (30) days before
work is to begin. All private strips shall be required to be
noted on the FAAsectional chart with a notation as to the
nature of the strip as well as the prevailing wind patterns
important to safe operation of aircraft in the vicinity.
Public (private Use
All private airstrips shall be for private use only and shall not
be considered primary airstrips nor public use airports as
defined by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) or
. Tennessee Aviation Standards. Private airstrips shall be
principally designed and intended to serve light aircraft of a
maximum gross takeoff weight of twelve thousand five
hundred (12,500) pounds or less. No rentai of hanger space
to customers nor fees of any kind may be charged persons
using the private airstrip elEEefltfaF Riel.

a) (2.)

PURPOSE: To amend, for the purpose of updating the requirements for
private airstrips. found in Section 3.340 (Private Airstrips).

WHEREAS; Title 13, Sections 13-7-101 through 13-7-401. of the Tennessee
Code. empower a Tennessee Regional Planning Commission to recommend the
enactment of a Zoning Resolution to a county legislative body and to provide
for its administration, enforcement, and amendment The Bedford County
Regional Planning Commission thus certified and recommended the Zoning
Resolution of Bedford County Tennessee to the Bedford County Commission on
January 18, 1997, and

WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission has, in its administrative
capacity, recommended an amendment to the said Zoning Resolution of
Bedford County and the Bedford County Commission has, after hearing
evidence in support of said amendment. deemed it necessary to make such an
amendment as required, for the said promotion of public health. safety,
convenience, order, prosperity. and general welfare of the County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Bedford County Commission
meeting at Shelbyville, Tennessee on this the 13th day of June. 2023. that:

The Bedford County Commission hereby amends the specifically described
Article. Sections and Subsections of the Zoning Resolution of Bedford County,

c) (6.) ~
1. Edit sub-section numbering to consistent format.

From numbers (1-6)to letters (a - f).

4

Item 1.



Res~lution 23-22.- Ame~dment to the Zoning Resolution of Bedford County, Article Ill,
Section 3.360 - ~Ign~, Billboards, and other Advertising Structures - Placed on the agenda by
the Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).

Motion to approve by Yockey. Seconded by Mark Thomas. Passed by voice vote.

BEDFORD COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

(2.) Structures - Tie downs or hangar structures shall
be located a minimum of two hundred fifty (250) feet
away from any portion of the airstrip. Only &fie ~ ~
ill hangar structures for the storage of no more than
~ six (6) aircraft is permitted.
(6.)(b.) l&n&th - The formula for calculating the minimum
runwaylength is as follows:
Using the AircraftManual(s) (ACM)for the aircraft owned and
intended to utilizethe proPOSedrunway.determine whichof the
aircraft reguires the longest maximum runway length at its
maximumweight. load. and with the most resistant of runway
and weather conditions. This aircraft willbe identifiedas the
owner·s critical aircraft.
Using the maximumrunway length for the critical aircraft (e.g"
multiplicand)witha multiplierof 1.8: calculate the product. The
minimumallowed airstrip length shall be the product of said
multiplication or one-thousand five-!lundred (1.590) feet.
whichever is greater. Inno instance shall any runwaylength be
less than one-thousand flVC-hundred(1.5901 feet in length.
airstrip shallae a miRimlim oftAree tholisanQ (J.ggg)
feet in leRgtil and no 10Rger thaR tllree tAolisaRd siJ(
hliRdred (J.6gg) feet in lengtR. There shall be a
designated RPZ at the approach end of the airstrip 110
less than one thousand the Rllndred (1.6gg) (1.000)
feet in length. The opposite end of the airstrip shall
have a designated RPZ of a minimum length of one
thousand (1000) feet.

d) '(8) Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Access
Access roads shall be provided constructed to provide
unimpeded two-way access for rescue and fire-fighting
equipment to the potential accident areas. Obvious signage lor
the purpose of directingfirst responders towardthe runwayand hangar
area shall be reguired. Connecting these roads/drives. to the
extent possible. with the operational surfaces of public
roadways shall be required.

2.

3.

e) (9) Fuel Storage
In the event a fuel storage facility is planned to be installed.
construction of an approved fuel storage pad with accidental
spillage area shall be made part of the site plan. Fuel storage
facilities shall be located a minimum of two hundred fifty

7.

Resolution No. 23-22

AResolution to amend Article III.of the Zoning Resolution of Bedford County:

PURPOSE:To amend. for the purpose of eliminating known 1st Amendment
Constitutional non-conformities in Article III. Section 3.360 (Signs. Billboards.
and other Advertising Structures).
WHEREAS;Title 13. Sections 13-7-101 through 13-7-401. of the Tennessee
Code.empower a Tennessee Regional Planning Commission to recommend the
enactment of a Zoning Resolution to a county legislative body and to provide
for its administration. enforcement. and amendment The Bedford County
Regional Planning Commission thus certified and recommended the Zoning
Resolution ofBedford County Tennessee to the Bedford CountyCommission on
January 18. 1997. and
WHEREAS.the Bedford County Commission. as recommended by the Bedford
County Regional Planning Commission. deemed it necessary in the promotion
of public health. safety. morals. convenience. order. prosperity. and the general
welfare of the County to enact the certified Zoning Resolution of Bedford
County on January 13. 1998. and
WHEREAS. the Regional Planning Commission has. in its administrative
capacity. recommended an amendment to the said Zoning Resolution of
Bedford County and the Bedford County Commission has. after hearing
evidence in support of said amendment. deemed it necessary to make such an
amendment as required. for the said promotion of public health. safety.
convenience. order. prosperity. and general welfare of the County.
NOW. THEREFOREBE IT RESOLVEDby the Bedford County Commission
meeting at Shelbyville.Tennessee on this the 13th day of June. 2023. that:
The Bedford County Commission hereby amends the specifically described
Article. Sections and Subsections of the Zoning Resolution of Bedford County.
Tennessee by adding the underlined (underlined) words below. deleting the

(250) feet from the Runway Surface Area and a minimum of
two hundred fifty (250) feet from any hangar. accessory
structure. or tie-down area for the storage of aircraft. Onsite
fuel shallbe forpersonaluse only;nocommercialsale olluello anyone
exceptina documentedemergency.

BE IT RESOLVED.this Resolution shall take effect Immediately. the public
welfare requiring It.

CJji) ~

DATEBEDFORDCOUNTYCLERK
DONNATHOMAS

words struck through (stRieli thFallgh). and by following italicized instructions
(do this or that) in parenthesis as follows:
1) Article 111.Section 3.360. Signs. Billboards. and Other Advertising

Structures
a) (A.) In Any Zoning Dtstrict, the Following General Regulations Shall Apply:

i. (8.) Temporary Signs

a. (d.) Ne temporary .'/eAI sign soall b. plae.d B.Iere HIie.A (15) days pF'i<>Ha
the ad .... tised eoeAt aAd all suo" SigRSad e~.IAg .... Rtoshall be •• mo".d
'AthiA I.A (19) d.). alt.rtil •• eAt date ."e.pu •• Iell. ;Ag.

b. (e.) Pelitieal sig••• d '.rtisiA8 oaRdid.tes Ier a geAeMiIer primary el.oti""
mal plae. sig.ag. up t. t.iR) llO) days prier te suoh el.Eh.n primary a.d
through to lite geReral ele.Iio •• Feme';Rg said sigRag. ' .ithin te. (19)-<1ays
alter the gen.ral.l.otion d;Ke,

An analysis of the above sections revealed Chatthere is Q clear 1st Amendment constitutional
conflict by treating temporary and political signage differently than any other sign types -
specificallywith the amount of time the speech is permitted. Certain cypesof speech cannot be
restricted differently In the law than other types of speech. Speech on signage is either free or It
is restricted. If it is restricted. all signage speech must be similarly restricted. The law allows
localgovernment to place certain restrictions on signage and speechfrom signage. so long as
all types of signage and speech are treated the same and that there is validrationale in so doing.

b) (B.) In the A-I. Agricultural District. the Following Regulations Shall Apply:

i, (2.) Net mer. tha. to.o (~) .e. illu.li.at.d sig.s, Ret 10 ." ••• d a letal or thirty
to. e (l2) square reet ift ,F.a. ad.eftisi.g the sal. or agFio.lt"ral p.eduEIS
~.

An analysis a/the above determined that agricultural retail, on premises 0/ Q farm, is exempt
activlcy.The entire subsection should be deleted.

ii. (3.) Church. school. or public building bulletin boards or identification signs. not
exceeding sixty (60) square feet in area permitted. Exception: No bulletin board
or identification signs shall be located on a designated scenic highway or parkway.

An analysisof the above recognized that we have several TOOTapproved scenichighways (41A
South. Dixie Hwy.- 130E. etc.]. State designated scenic highways prohibit the placement of
signage and billboard)" along the designated limitations. Local government, however, must
enforce these statt! rules or otherwise the highways can lose their official deSignations. An
exception prahlbltlng signs along this cype of roadway designation is needed to protect the
designations.

June 13,2023 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
5

Item 1.



BE IT RESOLVED. this Resolution shall take effect immediately. the public
welfare requiring it.

BEDFORD COUNTYCOMMISSION CHAIRMAN
CHAD GRAHAM.COUNTYMAYOR

,,·ti-i{)),3
DATE

S1fM<..(1..: ~-
BEDFORD COUNTYCLERK
DONNA THOMAS

,-/3-),)
DATE

Additional Items by Standing Committees:

Rules and Legislative Committee: None.

Law Enforcement Committee: None.

Courthouse and Property Committee: None.

Financial Management Committee:

8. BOE Budget Amendment No.3
Motion to approve by Brothers. Seconded by Pinson. Approved by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

9. County - Budget Amendment No.4
Motion to approve by Yockey. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

10. Surplus Property - BOE
Motion to approve by Epperson. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

ITEMS SENTTO BEDFORDCOUNTYSURPLUSTO BETRANSFeRREDOR SOLDFROM 8EDFORDCOUNTY SCHOOLS
Site ease... HI&hSchool Site Label 10:: • Code(Oo~. N- _ OpetebIo. U!CII'Opo...... Cond- ......

Dale: 4!1'/7m.3 'Qullntlty ·St.ws Mike/

Gov -Purchased
-Item DescriDtion {' of.} Manufacturer "SerialNo. Madel 'Value

DnIs "Label, By °Barcode
CadI!

Houseloated oncaSotadeHiBh School DfOpertv 1N $
BC80E $

$
S
S
$
S
S
$
s
S
S
S .
$
s
S
S

0s..rpius OS<flP

Additional Not.. :

IT£iill; SENTTO SED,ORt) COUNTY 5Ult?WS ';0", TRANS<cRREDOR SOLO fROM BEDHJRD COUNTYS(,IOOtS

Site' ft.<./;v/'/-C~.,R f(.c..t..f'J..o I Site Label 10:

·D.te: 7:-1?-':>-~ rr Statu. Codttto- Optl'ablt, N. Not OpeQ~. UKN. Oporatinl (ondltion Unknown)

Goy
Quantity Status

Bar(odlt -Item Desuiption I' of .1 Code Manufacturer SerlajNo. Make/Model V;all.l1t

Oe.b l.bol' PurdlaHd Bv <$250

W/"I,,~:"'_ t..",e, ltv_/' r ItA 11/ <$150

<S250

I
<5250

<$210

<5250

<$250

<$250
<S25O

<5250
<$2SO

<$250
c$2S0

<$250

<$250

<$2S0

.cS1SO

<nso
<$250

<SlSO

<$256

<$2.50
<$150
<$250

<$250

Additional Notes:

6

Item 1.



Other Business:

11. Bedford County & Elected Officials' Personnel Policy Amendments 2023 - For Information
Only - ToBe Spread Across the Minutes So Amendments Can Be Added Appropriately to
Personnel Policies

Announcements

• Juneteenth Celebration on the Square, Saturday, June 17 from 8 a.m. until 5 p.m.
• County offices will be closed on Monday, June 19.
• Celebration City Car Club on the Square, Friday, June 23 from 6 p.m. until 8 p.m.
• County offices will be closed on July 4.
• Special-called Finance Committee Meeting, June 29 at 6:30 before the Special-called

Commission Meeting.
• There will be an attorney-client meeting after tonight's meeting adjourns.
• Southside Elementary School shoe distribution was a success. Almost 400 students receive new

shoes, socks and backpacks.
• Bedford County is one among only 6 counties that have been selected to be a part of the TVA

Connected Communities.
• Broadband Acceleration Program surveys will be conducted via a link to Connect Bedford. There

will be paper surveys available to anyone without computer access. On June 20 there will be a
Broadband Summit. The goal is to be the first rural county that is fully connected.

• There will be a port BBQ butt sale and a cornhole fundraiser for the Peels family in Flat Creek on
Saturday.

• Mrs. Phillips with Bluebird Antiques in Bell Buckle was featured on the Mike Huckabee show.
• Former District 3 Commissioner Sewell Griffy passed away. Visitation tonight and funeral

services tomorrow at 2:00 at Lawrence Funeral Home.

Adjourn

Motion to adjourn by Epperson. Seconded by Pinson. eeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m.

Attestation

I certify that the minutes were completed on the 20th day of June 2023 and delivered to the Bedford
County Mayor's office.

Donna Thomas
Bedford County Clerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the ;2f day of June 2023.

Chad Graham
Bedford County Mayor

June 13,2023 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
7

Item 1.



~--

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

June~ Board of Commissioners Commissioner ~eeting Minutes 1 8

Item 1.



File Attachments for Item:

2. Approval of Special Called Commission Meeting Minutes from June 29, 2023 - Placed on agenda 

without a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee.

9

Item 2.



Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Thursday, June 29, 2023
Time: 7:00 PM
Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes
Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Chief Deputy Ann Marie Morton

PRESENT
Bill Anderson
John Boutwell
Jason Boyette
Janice Brothers
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Drew Hooker
Scott Johnson
Eric Maddox
Diane Neeley
Sylvia Pinson
Julie Sanders
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Mark Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick
Linda Yockey
2022-23 BUDGET AMENDMENTS - School Budget Amendment No.4 and County Budget Amendment
No.5
Anderson called for the Commission to split the budget into 4 votes: school system, sheriff department,
highway department, and general fund. He said that, according to Charles Curtiss, president of the
County Commissioners Assocation, it is legal to do this. He said he would not vote for any budget that
funds the Bedford County Partnership. Anderson said it is a nonprofit and the County has defunded most
nonprofits. He said the City has also defunded the Partnership. He asked to make a motion to pass the
school budget, the sheriff budget and discuss the rest. Graham said that would be premature because the
item currently before the Commission was 2022-23 Budget Amendments.

Johnson made a motion to approve the amendments together. Seconded by Hooker.
Hooker said that in the finance committee meeting Robert Daniel said that some of the funds moved over
from federal funding were used for capital projects and asked if there was a list of those. Graham asked
for a show of hands in favor of asking Daniel to speak. 11 commissioners raised their hands, so Daniel
came forward. Hooker asked what capital projects were funded by the $678,000 on page 1. Daniel said
that is school growth money that the county receives at the end of the year. It will go toward school
projects and that Dr. Tammy Garrett, School Superintendent, would have more information. Upon
approval by commissioners, Graham invited Garrett to speak. She said the projects included windows at
Thomas, a fire alarm system at Eastside, and 4 units in the gym at Community Middle.

Anderson asked if all students would be out of portables once Liberty was taken care of. Graham said
yes.
Motion passed by roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson, Maddox,
Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

Copies of the Budget Amendments are onfile in the Clerk's office.

Resolutions:
1. Resolution No. 24-1 -A Resolution Fixing the Tax Levy in Bedford County, Tennesseefor the

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2023
Yockey made a motion to approve the resolution with the tax rate bundled and waive reading of
the resolution. Seconded by Smith.
Vick called the question. Seconded by Brothers. Objection was raised by Epperson and
Maddox. County Attorney John T. Bobo stated that since there was an objection, there must be
a two thirds majority to call the question. Graham stated that a yes vote is to call the question

June 29, 2023 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

,.. ,..
10

Item 2.



and a no vote is to continue discussion. Motion to call the question failed on roll call
vote. 9 Ayes 9 Noes

Voting Yea: Boyette, Brothers, Johnson, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Mark Thomas, Vick, Yockey
Voting Nay: Anderson, Boutwell, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Maddox, Neeley, Adam Thomas,
Thompson

Maddox stated that there are things in this budget that we may not really need, such as a fire
marshal, $100k to the Partnership, and people making six figures on the payroll. He made a
motion to amend the resolution to decrease the total tax rate from $2.3252 to $2.1752. Graham
asked if Yockey would agree to amend the motion. Yockey did not agree.

Maddox made a motion to amend the resolution to lower the tax rate to $2.1752. Seconded by
Hooker. Boutwell presented data that in 2007 the Bedford County property tax revenue per
capita was $399. In 2022 it was $536 for an increase of 34.2%. The Consumer Price Index for
the same period increased 35.2%. So the property tax increase since 2007 has been slightly less
than the rate of inflation.

Vick asked where the .15 would come from. Maddox said his motion to amend includes
striking the .15 from General Debt Service for a total tax rate of $2.1752. Vick said the county
would not be able to pay its debt. Maddox said this would reduce the budgeted revenue from
$16M to $14M. He said projected debt expenditures for debt service for the upcoming fiscal
year are $9.6M which would leave a surplus of over $4M. Funding for approved projects is
expected to come from interest. Cutting the .15 will have minimal impact on the income
number since interest is being paid on the fund balance which is not being reduced. He
recommended cutting new revenue flowing into the account.

The motion to amend the resolution failed on roll call vote. 4 Ayes 14 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Farrar, Johnson, Pinson, Sanders, Smith,
Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey
Voting Nay: Epperson, Hooker, Maddox, Neeley

Yockey said this budget is not perfect, but it takes care of important things such as raises for
employees and teachers, SROs, and getting all students out of portables.

Original motion to approve the resolution passed by roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-1

RESOLUTION FOONG THE TAX LEVY IN
BEDFORD COUNTY, TENNESSEE

FOR THE FISCAl. YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1.. 2023

SECTIO N 1 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
.. •. d . th .29,b day ofBedford Countv Tennessee assembled in special caUe sesston on e fj I

11 VJ •• d C T see for the iscaJune. 202:3.that the uniform tax rate for Bedfor ounty, enness '. ' ..
b . . g July 1 2023 "hall be $2 3252 on each $100.00 of taxable propertyyear egmrun .' ,.~.. . f d d th .' e

county-wide. This is to provide revenue for each of tile following un s an 0 ..erW1S
conform to the following levies:

FUND
General
Highway/Public Works
General Purpose School
General Debt Ser-vice
County Capital Projects

MlE
$1.4300
0.0900
0.6200
0.1500
J!At3lt.2

Total Tax Rate 52.3252

SECTION 2. BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby levied a Gross Receipts
Tax as provided by law. 'The proceeds of the Gross Receipts Tax herein shall accrue
to the General Fund,

CTIO N 3 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all resolutions of the .
SE. ~ d CT. ssee which are IIIconflict,Board of County Commissioners of BedJor Jounty, ennes - , ,

are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED. th~t this resolution is i~effect
from and after its passage, the public welfare requiring.lt.ThIS reaolution shall be
spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners,

Adopted this the 29th day of June, 202:3.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

10-. ~~.ck
County Clerk

11

Item 2.



2. Resolution No. 24-2 - A Resolution Making Appropriationsfor the VariousFunds,
Departments, Institutions, Offices and Agencies of Bedford County, Tennessee,for The Year
Beginning July 1, 2023 and Ending June 30, 2024.
Motion to approve made by Boutwell. Seconded by Vick.

Anderson made a motion to vote for the school budget, sheriff budget, highway budget and
general fund separately. Seconded by Epperson. Graham stated that the 2023-24 Budgets will
be voted on as the last item. Anderson withdrew the motion.

Motion to approve the resolution passed by voice vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-2

A RESOI.UTION MAKINGAPPROPRIATIONS FOR THE VARIOUS FUl'"T>S,
DEPARTMENTS, INSTITUTIONS, OFFICES ANDAGENCIES OF
B.EDFORDCOUNTY,TENNESSEE, FOR THE YEARBEGINNING

.JULY1, 2023ANDENDING JUNE 30. 2024

SECTION I. BE IT R~;SOLVEDby the Board of County Comm;SS;oneri!ofBedford
County. Tennesaee, assembled in a special called .... ion on the 29" day of June, 2023. that
the amounts hereafter set out are hereby appropriated for the purpose ~fmeetmg the expenses
of the various funds. departn ••nte, mstitut;QI1S,office. and age~cle. of Bedford County,
Tenne•see, for the capital outlay. and for meeting the pllyment ofprmclpHIand mteresr 0." the
county's debt maturing during the year beginning July I. 2023. and ending June 30, 2024,
according to the followingschedule:

J:iENERALfUND
111100County Commission
51210 Board of Equali7.ation.
51220 Beer Board
51230 Budget and finance Commletee
5.1.300County Mayor
51310 Personnet Office
51400 (',Qunty Attorney
51500 Election Commission (Including Voter Re~lstration)
51600 Register of Deed.
51720 PlanOlng
51750 Code. Compliance
51760 Geographical [nformation Systems
51800 County Building.
519.10Preservation of Records
52100Aecourmng & Budgeting
52300 Property Asse ..sor's Office
52310 Reappraisal Program
52400 County Trustee's Office
52500 County Clerk'. Office
52600 Data P'(ICe•• ing
53100 Circuit Court
53300 General Se•• ions Court
·53400 Chancery Court
53500 Juvenile Court
53700 Judicial Commissioners
53900 Other Administration of JusllG'e
53910 Probation Service.
54110 Sheriff's Department
54130 Traffic Control
54210 Jail
54240 Juvenile Services
54490 Other Emergency Management
54610 County Coroner/Medical Examiner
54900 Other Public Safety
55110 Local Health Center
55120 Rabies and Animal Control

$ 164.612
8,000
1,000
3,003

367,002
99,1.97
65,000
253,695
4.05.614
281.187
206,143
67.935

1,693,545
122,400
932,998
467,867
140.191
443,564
698.295
397,256
966,512
284.459
42'1,581
245,260
265,816
162.776
501.292

5.845.751
43,246

4,460.763
709,857

2,673.334
55.000

843,869
824,107
405,66:J

55130 AmbulaocelEmergency Medical Services
53190 Other Local Health Services
65390 Appropriation to State
55510 General Welfa.rc .Assislance
5573.2 Convenience Center.
56100 Adult Activities
56300 Senior Citizens Assistance
56500 Libraries
57100 Agriculture Extension Service
57500 Soil Conservation
57900 Other Agriculture & Natural Resources
58110 Tourism
58190 Other Economic & Community Development
58300 Veterans' Service.
58400 Other Charges
58500 Contributions to Other Agencies
58900 Miscellaneous

$

Total General Fund

lllill.Q~l'.J).:NJ.:l
58900 Miscellaneolls

Total Drug Control Fund

W.QHWAY/PU~~lUill
5(11)00Contributions to Other AgenCIes
61000 Administration
62000 Highway and Bridge Ma.intenance
63100 Operation and Maintenance of Equipment
64000 Litter and 'hash Collection
65000 Other Charges
66000 Employee Benefits
68000 Capita! Outlay
99000 Other Uses

Total Highway/Pubhc Works Fund

GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
it000 Instruction
71100 Regular Instruction Prograsn
71150 Alternative Instruction Program
71200 Special Education Program
71300 Career and Technical Edllcation Program
72110 Attendant ..
72120 Health Services

June 29, 2023 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

,_

5.415.090
74.016
54.000
75.070

1.791.236
5.700
16.000
181.305
145,758
68.000
ltO,389
2.369

.110,000
lOa.781
563.000
185,000

1.47.3,424

35.908.fJ34

100

s 100

7,000
408.618

1.784.187
702.494
114.405
218.801
61,129

4.650.000
25.011

s 7,971.645

s 42.8:17.789
827.834

4,294.238
5.736.<147
507,721
833.717

12

Item 2.



72130 Other Student Support
72210 R.e,war Instruction Program
72220 Special Education Program
72230 Career and Technical EduClltion Program
72250 Technology
72310 Board of Education
72320 Office of the Superintendent
7241.0 Office of the Principal
72520 Human Service. (Resources) Personnel
72610 Operation of Plant
72620 Maintenance of Plant
72110 Transportatlon
73100 t'(iOd Service
13300 Community Services
73400 Early Childhood Education
76100 Regular CapitAl Olltlay
99000 Other U•••

Total General Purpose School Fund

CHILD NUTRITION t'UljO
72310 Board of Education
73100 Food Service
99000 Other Uses

Total Child !\utrition Fund

SCliQQL.AGE CARE..~
72310 Board of Education
73300 CommunIty Services

Total Extended School Program Fund

!l~__&\L oEBT SERviCE t'UND
82100 General Government
82130 ~;duC8tion
82210 General Government
822:10Education
82300 Other Debl Service· General Government

Total General Debt Service Fund

r;lllLCAIlQ~ITAL PROJECTS FUND
91300 Educational Capital Projects

Total Education Capital Projects Fund

COUNTY CAPITAI,.J:'I~~.ulSD.
91130 General Administration ProjocU!
91130 Public Safety Project..
91190 Other General Government ProjeCl$
91300 Education Capital Projects

Total County Capital Project. Fund

s 3.127.305
2,290.519
529.655
28.938

4.199,004
1.483.249
59L546

5.333.397
324,287

7.711'>.828
3.027.238
4.053.801

57.199
183,209
806,318

5.804,352
143.177

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVf:O that there are also hereby
appropriated certain portions of the commissions and fee. for collectini tax•• and licenses and
for administerinl other funds which I.he trustee, ,'l)lInty clerk, circuit cour-t clerk. clerk and
ma.ter ..register. and the sheriff and their officiolly aulhorl~d deputies and a!l8lstants may be
entitled to receive under State laws heretofore or h4!reafter enacted. ~':xp~.nditurosout of
commiSSionsand/or fe.es colledt)'d by the trustee. county clerk. circuit court clerk, clerk and
master. register and .heriIT may be made for such purpose. and in such amounts •• may be
authorized by ""istinl!' law or by valid order of any court having power It, make such
appropriation's. Any u<e68 ~,()lDmi'8i()n.andior fee. c'OlIeetedover and above the expenditures
duly and conelu~ivcly 8uthoril.ed shall be paid over to ~he trustee lind converted into the
General Fund a. provided by law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVr;n that if any fee official•• as enumerated in Sectton 8·
22.101. Tennessee Code Annotated. operate under provisions of Section 8·22·104, Tennessee
Code Annotated, provi.ion8 of the prec..ding pIl".gt·aph .haU not apply to tho." particular
offiCIals. .

SECTION 3. BE 11'FURTHER RESOLVED that any amendment to the budget.
except for aRl(;nd.me.nts to the budget .for fun.ds under supervuion or the dirocto" of schools.
shall be appro,'ed aa provided in Section 5·9-407. Tenn •• see Code Annotated. Tho director of
schools must receive approval of the Board of Education for transfers WIthin each major
category of the budget. and approval of both the Board of Education and Board of County
Commissioners fo'rtransfers between major categories as rEquired by law,

One copyof each amendment "hall be filed With the county clerk. one copy With the
chairman of the Financial Management Committee. and one copy WIth each dlvis",nal or
departmentRl head cuncerned. "he reason(.) (or each tran ..fer shall be clearly Slated: however.
this section shall in no case whatsoever be construed al authorizing transfer from one fund to

another. but shall apply solely to transfers with.in 8 certain fund.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any appropriations made by rh,s
i-eaolutiou which (,.'Overt.h~ same purpose for which u speCific appropriation _h~made by atatuttl'
is made In lieu of but not In addition to said statutory appropriation The salary. wages. or
remunoration of each officer, employe., or agent of the county .haU not be In ."cess of the
amounts authorized by existing law or as set forth in the estimate of .xp~nditure. which
al'COmpaniesthi! rellOlution. Provided. however. that apl'ropriatiun. for such salaries. ",a""•.
Qr other remunerlition het€bv ButhortZ(td shall in no case he construed as pern\1(ting
expenditures for an office. 8.ge~~'. institutIOn. diviSIOnor department of the county in exc....
of the appropriation mad. herein for such office. agen¢y. institution. dwision or department of
the county. Such appropriatioll shall constitute the limIt to the expenditures of any ,,(flee.
agency. institution, division or department for the year endin8 June 30. 2024. The aggregate
expenditures for any item of appropriation shall in nOinstance be more than the amount herein
appropriated tor such item.

SECTION 5. .BE rT FURTHER RESOLVED that any 1"""lutlOn which may
hereafter be presented to the Board of County C()nlmi.sioner~ providing for appropriation. '"
addition to those made by thiB Budget Appropriation Resolution shall specifically proVlde
sufficient revenue or other funds actually to be provided during the year in which the
expenditu", is to be made t.o meet such additional appropriation. SaId apPl"Oprl3ting
re601ution shall bl! submitted to and approved by the .tate director of Loc.l Fmane,' ofter it.
adoption 0' provided by ScCction9·21·403. Tennessee Code Annotated.

SECTION 6c BE IT FURTH.ER.RESOLVEDthat tho county mayor and county
clerk. are hereby authorized to borrow money on reve_nue anticipation notes, provided auch
notea are firat approved by t,nti~tate directOr oC Local Finance. to pay ror the expentlies herein
authorized until the taxes and other revenue for the year 2023·24 have been collected. The
pro<:.ed.of Joans for each individual fund .hall not exreed 60% of the appropriation. of .ach
fund and shall be used only to pay tbe expe""•• and other requirements of the fund for which
the 10•.n i.made. The loan .hall be paid out of revenue from the fund for which money i.
horrowed. The Dote. evidencingthe loans authorized under thi. ""ction .ball be ""'lied under
the applio.ablesect'o"" ofTitle 9. Chapter 21. T.nn ...... CodeAnnotated. Said noteo .hall be
_;.gnedby the county mayor and countersigned by tbe county clerk. and shall matllre ond 00
p.id in full without renewal not later than June 30. 202~.

$ 94.735.768

SECTION i. BE IT Ft:RTHER RESOLVEDthat the delinqllentcount.y property
taxeg for the yeaI' 2022 and prior year!! and the interest. Rnd penalty thereon coUt~otedduring
the ye9r ~nding June 30. 2024. ohall be apportioned to the variouocollnty fund. o=rdmg to
the subdivision of the tax levy (or the y(!ar 2022. The derk and master B,nd the t-ruste'e orc
hereby Authorized and dir~cted to mak~ such apportionment aC(",ordin,ly.

s 54.000
6.373.896

22.012

SECTION 8. BE IT FURTHER RESOIXED that all unencumb.... d balances of
appropriations remaining at tho end of the year .halll.p"" and be of no further effect at the
end ofthe ycar at .June 30. 202·~.

s 6.449.908

SECTION 9. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,hat any r..""lulion or part of •
r.""lution which heretofore has been pa_d by tho Board of County Comn,i.olOner. which i.
Inconflict with any provision in this t'e-@Olutionbe sod the same ill' hereby re-pealed.

1,800
719.755

s 721,51>5

SECTION 10. BE IT FURTHERRESOLVEDr.hatthis re8olutlon .hall take effect.
fromand .fter it. paasage and iUl pro,~.ion8 .hail be III fore"fromand .£te.rJuly 1.2023. This
reeoiutlon shall be. sprea.d upon the minutes of the Board of County Comlnissione-rs.

1.966.251)
2.786.845
1.031.111
3.671,863
166,749

$ 9.62,1,823

Aduptedthi. the 29<"day of Junc. 2023.

APPROVED:

$ 40,159.0&2

tJj(),~
County Mayor

$ 40,159.052

iJnmLJkU'_¥¢G
C.()"nty Clerk

Resolu.tio~ No. 24-3 - A Resolution Making Appropriations to Nonprofit Charitable
Org~mzatlOnsof Bedford County, Tennessee For the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1 2023 and
Endmg June 30, 2024. '

Motion made by Smith. Seconded by Pinson. Motion passed by roll call vote. 18Ayes 0 Noes

~o~ng Yea: Ande~son,Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
a dox, Neeley, Pmson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas Thompson V' kYockey , , IC,

3.

$ 96.0()0
763..547

1.927.543
40.000,000

s ~2.787.090

13

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-3

A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT
CHARITABLE ORGA."IIZATIONS OF BEDFORD COUNTY. TENNESSEE FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1,2023 AND ENDING .JUNE 30. 2024

\VHEREAS. Section .-9-109, Tenn••• ee Code Annotated, authori zes the Board ofCounty
Commissioners: of Bedford County to make appropriations to variou~ nonprofit charitable

Qrganizations and.

WHEREAS. the Board of County Conlmi""ioners of BedfordCounty recognize. the
various nonprofit charitable organi•• tion8providing services in BedfordCounty have
great need of funds to carry on their charitable work,

NOWTHERE"'ORE BE IT R~;SOI.VEDhy the Iloard of County Commi.sioners of
BedfordCounty. Tennessee assembled in • special culled session on the 29,h day of June.

202;).

SECTION L That srx hundred .ixty throe thousand seven hundred forty dollars
(S66a.i40) be appropriated to nonprofit organizations in BedfordCounty as reflected below'

Account~~ ._ Auney --<',--_ ......_-'"
101 C(JUnt.yGeneral Fund
101.5~)l90~3l6 Community De\'elopment Genter
IOI-5~~IO-:109 Tenn essee Rehabilit.uon Center
101-56100-316 Skills Development Center
101-56300-:116 Seruer Citizeno Center
101.56500-316 Argi. Cooper Public Library
101-57500--316 Soil &: water Conaecvation Ser\~"",-e
101-58IJO-316 South C..ntral Tourism A"socinti"n
101.58110.316 Tenn essee Backroad. Herit.a,.
101-58190-316 Sbelbyville Partnership t:conomlc Dey.
101-58500-316 Fire Station #2
101-565()(~316 Ftre Stabon #:j
101.58500-316 .Fire Station #4
101-58500-316 Fin! Station #~
101-M50ll-JIS fire St.tion llEi
101-58500-316 FIX. Station It·; •
101-58500-316 Fire Station 119- Frank Mart'" Road
101-58900-316 Arts Council
101-58900-316 Caregiver Reli.r
101.58900-316 Chamber of Commerce
101-58900-316 Gilliland Center
101.58900-316 Haven of lIope
101-58900-:316 South CentrallluDtan Resource Agency
101-58900-316 CASA

Sub Totlll

131 Highway Fund/Public Wod<-.Fund
IOI-;8500-aI6 Senior Citizen" Center

Sub Total

Total

In-Kind [)QnatiCnli(Based on t.he value of OffiL'eSpace)
.JURtOY'8, House
Community Clinic
Middle "rennes~e Spay & Neuter Clune
ShelbY\"iUePartnership Economic De-v,
Bedfurd County/Shelbyville Tourrsm &

Marketing

10.200
48.419
15.000
8.2~O

....A!lI9JlDt

>, 7.000
74.'1i(1
5.iOO
16.000
181.305
68.000

300
2.069

100.000
25.000
25.000
2;.000
25.000
25.000
25.000
25.000
4.3~O
2.280
3,000
:;70

2.947
8.749
5.000

Totol

ANDBE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all appropriations enuroerated in Section I
above a .... subject to the following conditions:

L That the nonprofit organization. to which Ihe funds are appropri.tcd shall file .
with the County Clerk and the disbursing official •• copy of an nnnual report of It.
business affairs and transaction!' and the propolK'd usc of the ~unty'!\ funds.
Such annual report shall be prepAred and certified by the Chief Financial Officer
of such nonprofit organization i.n accordance with Se-ction 5.9-109(c). ~~

Q9!IJl_~-
2. That said fund. must only b. spent by the named nonprofit charitable .

organizations in furthorance of their nonprofit charitable purposes henefabng tbe
general welfare of the residents of Bedford County.

3. That it is t-he expressed in~I"C'st of the County Commi&!ion of Bedford. County
providing these funds to the "hove named non-profit charitable, orgaluz.."itlOn8 to
be fully in complianCt1 Section ;'-9-109. T!tntl!ll;l'!lJL~d_~1ll!&!! and any and aU
other laws whic,h mal· apply to County approprulcions to non·profit OrgaOlz.atlons
lind so this appropri~tiQn is mad., subject. to compliance with any and all ot t.hese

laws and reg:uh,tion~.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED. thnt this resolution shall Lakeefreet frQ~nand after its
pa_ge and its provisions "hall be ill full rorce from and alter July I~202.l ThIS -
te8()lution shall he ~pread U.ponthe minutes of the Board of County Commlsslon thiS the

29"' day of Jun •. 2023.
$ 656.740

$_.J.ll!ll! APPROVED:
A'M'EST:

7.00{) .c~--
County Mayor

&~df~
County Clerk

$. '163,740

4. Resolution24-4 - Resolution to Authorize Payment of Additional Compensation to Certain
Court Clerks
Motion made by Vick. Seconded by Yockey. Passed by roll call vote. 18Ayes oNoes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-4

RESOI.U1'ION TO AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF ADDITJONAL
COMPENSATION TO CERTAlN COURT CLERKS

WHFiREAS, the Tennessee General Aascmbly. in passing Chapter 195 of th",
Public ,\cts of 2005. provided thai. clerks of court "'ho aerVt) more than one court may
be paid additional CQmpenalltion tor the additionnl duties and time required in

serving multiple courts; and

WHEREAS, TllnlW$$'!1IC.ldllArtlloUlied, Section 8·24·102. as amended by
Chapter 195 of the Publi.c Ac~ of 2005. now provides that the Board of County
Commissioners of Bt.'<lfordC,oUrttymay pay such a dctk art additional ten percent
(10%) of the clerk's base sal at)'. provided that such add.itional compensation is
authorized by ;I resolution of the county legisilltive body; and

WH'EREAS, the Hoa.rd of County Commissioners of Bedford <-~ul)ty has
determined that the blli<! salary of court clerks in Bedford County is 5102.0'12: and

WHEREAS. the Board of County Commissiollers of BedJord County has
determiMd that two (2) court clerks in Bedfotd Counr.)"are cU1:renrly ."~·ing ilS

clerk for the following coutU;: Circuit, General Session<l, .Juvenile, Chancery and
Probate and that. in the opinion of the lk>ardof County Commissioners. it i.
appropriate to PI'o\.jdo addition!.1 compenSation to the cl.c.rk;;erving these court!!,

NOW. THEREFORE BE IT RESOl.VED, by the Board of County
Conuniasioners of Bedford County. Tennessee, assembled in the 3pecial called
session on the 29'" doy of June, 202:1, ,n Shelbyville, n·nnessee, that;

SECTION L The Board of County Commis.~i!)ners of Bedford Count)',
Tennessee. authorizes the clerk serving tho court8listed above to receive additional
compensation beginnins ;July 1. 2023, @quivillc:nt to UHl percent (10%) of the base
salary paid. the clerk as a general officer of the county.

SECTION 2. This RellOlutiou shalllw effective upon it-8pa$Sllge and
approval. the public welfare requiring it_

AP['lWVED:

Adopted this 29" day of .June, 2023.

AT'l'EST:

lJmtKJ).~
County Clerk

June 29, 2023 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
14

Item 2.



--~
5. Resolution No. 24-5 - ToProvide for Education Incentive Payments to Full-Time Elected

Officials of Bedford County Government

Motion made by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Anderson.

Hooker asked whether all county employees can participate in this. Graham said this particular
program is a state program for elected officials only. Any employee can participate in the
Certified Public Administrator Program, but that is not addressed in this resolution.
Motion passed by roll call vote. 18Ayes 0 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-6

TO PROVIDE FOR EDUCATION INCEl\'TIVE PAYMENTS TO FULL.TIME
F;LECTED OFFICIALS QI,' BEDFORD COUl\'TY GOVERNMENT

WHEREAS.under Te.A. 5·1.310(i).counties are authorized and encouraged
to provide in the annual budget for payment of an educational incentive to full- time
elected county officials who attain the designation of "Certified Public
Administrator' under the University of Tennessee County Technical Assistance
Service', County Onicialg Ctlrtificatlt Training Program (COCTP); and

WHEREAS. Bedford County desires 00 provide (or such an incentive payment;
in its budget. for the fisoal year 2023·24:

NOW THERE PORE. I:IE IT RESOLVlm by the Board of County
Commresionere of Bedford County,Tennessee, assembled in a special called meeting
on the 29'" day of June. 2023. that:

SECTION I. Any full- time elected county official and Lh. Clerk and Master
of Bedford County who has completed the COCTP and attained the designation of
Certified Public Administrator and who submite to the oounty mayor proof of such
attainment on or before October I, 2023. shall he paid in an amount not 00 exceed
the 8UOl of two thou •• nd five hundred dollars ($2,/)00) less any payment received
from the State of Tennessee as provided in subsection (a). The incentive provided by
this section shall he poid in one (I) payment, no later than Octcber 31,2023. from
county funds appropriated for that purpose (or the fiscal year 2023·24.

SECTION 2. Thi, resolution aM.II take effect upon its passage and approval,
the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 29" day of June, 2023.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

6. Resolution No. 24-6 -A Resolution Making All Federal Grants to Bedford County in Regard to
Education Conform to The Federal Regulations of Such Grant

Motion made by Epperson, Seconded by Anderson.

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-6

A RESOLUTION MAKI::-JG ALL f'EDERAL GRANTS TO BEDFORD COUNTY
IN REGARD TO EDUCATION CONFORM TO THE FEDERAL

REGULATIONS Of' SUCH GRANT

B.E IT RESOINED. that the Bedford County School" Federal Proiects Fund forthe
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESS"')projects shall be the budget approved for the .
•• parate project. within the fund by the Bedford Count)' Board of Educanon. Be It..
further resolved that the Individual. with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA - Part B
and Preschool) and Carl Perkin. Vocational projects shall be the budget approved for
the separate projects within the fund by the Bedford County Board of Educnnon and
the Tennessee. Department of Education.

SECTION 1. BE IT F'URTHF:R RESOLVED that there art' also hereby
appropriated certain portions of the commi8si~ns and fees for collecting tuxes 8,od .
licenses and Coradministering other funds which t-he Trustee, County Clerk. Circuit
Court Clerk, Clerk and Master. Register and th. Sheriff,md their officially
authorized deputies and assistants may sever ally be en!.'tl~d to r~ce~ve under State
laws theretofore or hereafter enacted. Expenditures out. ot commissions. and/or fees
collected by the Trustee, County Clerk, Circuit Court Clerk. Clerk and Master,
Register and the Sheriff may be authorized by existing low or by valid .order of any
court having power to make such appropriations. Any excess co.mmLSslons ~ndfor
fee8 collected over and above the expenditures duly and eonclusiveiy a\lthorl~d
shall be paid over 1.0 the Trustee and converted into the General Fund a. provided
bylaw

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHIc:R HESOLVED that if any fee ,,£fieial •.•• enumerated
in Section 8.22·101, T.C."" .. operate under provi.ion. of Section 8·22·101. T.C:,":
pro,tisiolls of the preceding pllragt'aph shaH not apply t.o tho!oieparticular officlal5.

SECTION 8. B~: 11' FURTHER RESOLVED that any amendment to the budget
.hall he approved •• provided for in Section 5·9·407. T.C.A.

One c"'py o( each amendment sh.1I he filed with the County Clerk. one copy with ~he
Chairman of the Financia.l Management Committee, Hnd one With each dlVll\lOnn or
department,al head com:erned. The l:eoson(s) fOI' each transfer shall he clearl~ .
stated' however. this section shaU in no cad€' wha.taloover construed as ~~t~onzlng .
transf~r from one fund to another, but shall apply i50lely to lran!fers Within a certain
fund.

Adopted this 29" day of .June, 2023.

APPROVED: A'ITEST:

~~
County ClerkCounty Mayor

15

Item 2.



7. Resolution 24-7 - ToAuthorize the Bedford County Highway Department To Perform Work
For All City/County Governmental Entities In Bedford County

Motion made by Epperson. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick,
Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 24-7

TO AUTHORIZE THE BEDFORD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
TO PERFORM WORK FOR ALL CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL

ENTITIES IN BEDFORD COUNTY

WHEREAS. under Tllone!:!see Cude Annutl'!l!:.!l. Section 54·7·202 (d) (2), empowers the
county governing body (Board of County Commissioners) to authorize the county road
department to perform work for other governmental entities so long as the cost of the
projects so authorized is reimbursed to the county road department, and

WHEREAS. Num!itrQ\!JI.QQ.Yittmnllm!lLE~~rd County have rc~~ested that
the Bedford County Highway Deparcment perform certain work for iliQ!'&J::!1l.!ll~.and

WHEREAS. the Bedford County Supertntendent of Highways advises that such work
can he performed by the county highway department without any adverse effects upon the
county work:

NOW THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners .01'
Bedford County. Tennessee. assembled in a special called meeting on the 29'" day ot June.
2023, that:

The Bedford Couruy Highway Department under the direction of the Superint,e~~d~n.t of
Highways of Bedford County. is authorized to perform work for Governmental. F,nhtles~
Bedford COllnty,during the 2023·24 fiscal year. The said Superintendent of Highways shall
itemize the costs to the full amount of such costs incurred by the Bedford County HIghway
Department and bill these entities fur the full amount of such costs incurred by the Bedford
County Highway Department, which shall be paid immediately upon ~mpletlon of said
work to the Bedford County Trustee. The County Trustee shall deposit all funds received
from !;.W;;.!!!UUltilil!.itbyreason of this authorization [0 the county highw.a~ fund. ThIS
authorization shall be effective upon adoption. the public welfare requtrmg It.

ADOPTED this 29'" day of -June, 20Z3.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

County Mayor County Clerk

2023-24 BUDGETS (Includes County General Fund 101,Drug Control Fund 122, Highway/Public
WorksFund 131, General Purpose School Fund 141, Child Nutrition Fund 143, School Age Care
Program Fund 146, General Debt Service Fund 151, Jail/Justice Center Capital Project Fund 171,
Education Capital Project Fund 177, and County Capital Projects Fund 178)

Anderson made a motion to unbundle the budgets and vote on them individually. Seconded by
Epperson. Graham stated that conflict of interest would come into play if it affects payor benefits for you
or your spouse.

Hooker said that it is important to vote on each budget individually so that those who have a conflict of
interest will not vote and so that there can be discussion on individual line items. Epperson said she
spoke with Charles Curtiss and he said that if the budgets are not bundled, employees cannot vote on their
own budget. Graham said that if any commissioners have a conflict and cannot vote on a particular
budget, the majority number of votes needed will change accordingly.

Vick said that the budget is a 52-week process and those who attend budget meetings are continually
discussing and questioning how numbers are arrived at. He said the budget committee has worked on it
since February. He said the tax rate has already been adopted and the expenditures for various
departments have already been approved, as well as appropriations for nonprofits, education incentives,
and so forth. There is no tax increase. Unbundling is just a way to be able to line item veto and that is
prohibited.

Anderson called the question. The motion failed on roll call vote. 8 Ayes 10 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Maddox, Neeley, Adam Thomas, Thompson
Voting Nay: Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Johnson, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Mark Thomas, Vick, Yockey

Vick made a motion to approve the budgets all together as proposed. Seconded by Boutwell. Motion
passed by roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes

Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson, Maddox,
Neeley, Pinson, Sanders, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

Copies of Budgets onfile in the Clerk's Office.

June 29, 2023 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
16

Item 2.



_c

Announcements
• Boutwell thanked Representative Pat Marsh, Senator Shane Reeves, and Governor Bill Lee for

the new TISA funding formula which resulted in more funds for schools.
• Anderson thanked Highway Superintendent Mark Clanton for helping out at the Ag Center and

Mayor Graham for helping them get a better truck.

Adjourn
Motion to adjourn by several Commissioners. Meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m.

Attestation
I certify that the minutes were completed on the 7th day of July 2023 and delivered to the Bedford County
Mayor's office.

DonnaThomas
BedfordCountyClerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the J/) day of July 2023.

BedfordCountyMayor

17

Item 2.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Resolution No. 24-8 Bedford County Corridor Study Transportation Planning Grant-Placed on agenda 

by Rules & Legislative Committee (4-0).

18

Item 4.



 

 
 

 

BEDFORD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION No. 24-8 
 

Bedford County Corridor Study Transportation Planning Grant 
 

WHEREAS, the Bedford County Board of Commissioners submitted an application 
with approved Resolution 21-39 for consideration of grant request to the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation for the Transportation Planning Grant; and   

WHEREAS, Bedford County Government was awarded the Tennessee Department 
of Transportation Planning Grant to develop a corridor study in Northern Bedford 
County on April 19, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, a Steering Committee was created and conducted meetings specific to 
grant guidelines; and  

WHEREAS, public engagement collected was an asset in gaining valuable 
community input to assist with the completed study; and  

WHEREAS, Bedford County has completed the corridor study identifying existing 
and projected needs in regard to the safety, mobility, and connectivity of State Route 
231 north and south as well as adjacent roadways connecting State Route 269 and 
State Route 16/41A;   

WHEREAS, the Bedford County Regional Planning Commission voted at their 
regular session meeting of May 23, 2023 to favorably recommend the 
acknowledgement of the completed study to the Bedford County Board of 
Commissioners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Bedford County Board of 
Commissioners: 

19

Item 4.



1. That the Mayor and Bedford County Board of Commissioners acknowledge 
the completion of the 231 North Corridor Study. 

2. That the Mayor and Bedford County Board of Commissioners will support 
the implementation of the recommendations contained within.  
 

PASSED AND SO ORDERED THIS _____ DAY OF _________________, 2023. 

 
_______________________________________  _____________  
Chad Graham, Bedford County Mayor                      Date 
 
 
_______________________________________  _____________ 
Robert Daniel, Bedford County Finance Director    Date 
 
 
________________________________________  _____________ 
Donna Thomas, Bedford County Clerk    Date 
 
 
 

20

Item 4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Temporary Public Comment Guidelines - Pursuant to State of Tennessee Public Chapters 213 and 300

effective July 1, 2023, a governing body shall, for each public meeting, reserve a period for public 

comment on matters that are germane to the items on the agenda for the meeting.

21

Item 5.



Bedford County Board of Commissioners 
Public Comment Guidelines 

 
 
 

Pursuant to State of Tennessee Public Chapters 213 and 300 effective July 1, 2023, a governing body 
shall, for each public meeting, reserve a period for public comment on matters that are germane to the 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 

The local government will make available “no later than” 48 hours prior to meetings the agenda on the 
county government website www.bedfordcountytn.gov as well as, publish agendas in the local newspaper 
when appropriate. 

Items not included on the agenda at the time of the meeting will require the commission/committee to 
suspend the rules to add an item to the agenda per local rules sections Q and R. 

Citizens of Bedford County wishing to address an item on the agenda will be required to fill out a request 
form and present to the chairman of the appropriate commission/committee prior to calling the meeting to 
order. Forms will be available both on the county website as well as available hardcopy at the time of the 
meeting. 

1. Public comment will follow approval of the prior month commission/committee meeting minutes. 
2. Three speakers “in favor or not” of an item on the agenda will be allowed to address the 

commission/committee for three minutes during the meeting. If there are more than three wishing 
to speak on either side of the matter, the chairman will draw three names from the list of citizens 
who requested to speak. 

3. Meetings regarding personal or non-action items are not subject to these rules, per Public Chapter 
300. 
 

 

 

22

Item 5.

http://www.bedfordcountytn.gov/


 

PUBLIC COMMENT REQUEST FORM 

 

Commission/Commitee Mee�ng Date:_______________________ 

 

Agenda Item(s) On Which To Comment:     

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Name of Requestor:        ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Bedford County Address:___________________________________________________________ 

                                              ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Email/Phone Contact:      ___________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

Persons with a disability who wish to request a special accommoda�on to par�cipate in the public mee�ng should 
no�fy Suzanne Alexander (1) business day prior to the mee�ng if at all possible, by calling (931) 684-7944 or email your 
request to suzanne.alexander@bedfordcountytn.gov to discuss accommoda�ons.  Every reasonable effort will be made 
to meet your need. 

 

 

23

Item 5.

mailto:suzanne.alexander@bedfordcountytn.gov


24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. Consideration of Petition from Bedford Market, Sunchaser's Market, and Halls Mill Market to Reduce 

the 2,000 Foot Distance Rule to Zero Footage Distance from a Church, School, or Public Gathering Place 

to Sell Beer.

29

Item 6.



30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.



32

Item 6.



33

Item 6.



34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



38

Item 6.



39

Item 6.



40

Item 6.



41

Item 6.



42

Item 6.



43

Item 6.



44

Item 6.



45

Item 6.



46

Item 6.



47

Item 6.



48

Item 6.



49

Item 6.



50

Item 6.



51

Item 6.



52

Item 6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. Spectrum Contract

53

Item 7.



54

Item 7.



55

Item 7.



56

Item 7.



57

Item 7.



58

Item 7.



59

Item 7.



60

Item 7.



61

Item 7.



62

Item 7.



63

Item 7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. Surplus Property - BOE

64

Item 8.



65

Item 8.



66

Item 8.



67

Item 8.



68

Item 8.



69

Item 8.



70

Item 8.



71

Item 8.



72

Item 8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. Q3 Reports

Clerk & Master

Circuit Court Clerk/Driving School Director-Report Enclosed.

County Clerk

Director of Schools

Election Registrar

Hwy Superintendent - Report Enclosed.

Property Assessor

Registrar of Deeds

Trustee

Shelbyville-Bedford Partnership

73

Item 9.



74

Item 9.



75

Item 9.



76

Item 9.



77

Item 9.



78

Item 9.



79

Item 9.



80

Item 9.



81

Item 9.



82

Item 9.



83

Item 9.



84

Item 9.



85

Item 9.



86

Item 9.



87

Item 9.



88

Item 9.



89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



91

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 1.	June 13 Commission Minutes
	Regular Monthly Meeting 2023-06-13

	Item 2.	June 29, 2023 Special Called Commission Minutes
	Special-Called Meeting 2023-06-29

	Item 4.	Resolution 24-8 Bedford County Corridor Study Transportation Planning Grant
	Planning Transportation Resolution (003)

	Item 5.	Temporary Guidelines on Public Comment
	Public Comment Guidelines (
	Public Comment Form (2)
	Public Chapters 300 and 213 on Open Meetings

	Item 6.	Beer Distance from 2K Ft to 0 Ft
	Petition for Distance Rule Reconsideration

	Item 7.	Spectrum Contract
	Spectrum Contract

	Item 8.	Surplus Property - BOE
	Surplus Property - BOE

	Item 9.	Q3 Reports
	Highway Superintendent Q3 Report
	Q3 Driving School Report

	Bottom

